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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The old Greeley county courthouse in Tribune is a plain, almost austere
two-story building constructed of Greeley county sandstone and white stone
from Hamilton county with a galvanized iron cornice. The stone work is
rock-faced and laid in plain ashlar courses. The steps, window and door
sills, string courses and voussoirs have been made of Ness county stone.

The roof, which is now covered with asphalt shingles, is hipped and gabled.
Originally there was a wrought iron railing around a captain's walk. The
building measures 48 feet by 52 feet.

The courthouse is located a few blocks from the commercial district
and is surrounded by trees. The main entranceway, which is arched, faces
south and projects forward from the facade. The arch has been articulated
by voussoirs, and the door which is recessed, has a fanlight. Above the arch-
way are two rectangular windows and a painted pediment which crowns the
projection rising slightly above the roof ridge. The pediment has been re-
painted white, but originally there was a pdinted clock with its hands set
a few minutes past nine. The windows, like all other apertures in the build-
ing , each have an arched lintel with voussoirs and a keystone. There is
a string course that rests on top of the keystone of the first story windows
and grazes the top of the entranceway arch. Another string course is even
with the top of the keystones on the second story windows. The corners
have been quoined.

To either side of this projection are two windows on each story, in-
cluding the basement, symmetrically arranged. Centered above each of the
two sets of aligned windows is a fanlight in the gable. The entablature
which has brackets and consoles breaks to a cornice above the gables.
This iron entablature has been left unpainted. '

The eastern and western facades each have two projecting wings with
gables, and a centered stone chimney that breaks the entablature and changes
to red brick above the cornice line. Each of the projecting wings has a
central pilaster that is capped with a triangular piece of galvanized
iron that fits into the roof ridge. Originally red brick chimneys also
rose from these pilasters above the roof line. There are eight windows run-
ning across each story on these facades. There are also fixed, metal ex-
terior fire escapes from the second story to the ground.

There is a modern addition which serves as a secondary entranceway
and toilet facility on the northern facade of the building. Originally the
building was serviced by outhouses. Above the addition, flush on the facade
is a large arched opening which was filled by cement blocks in the 1930's
because it let in too much air and dust. The roofline opens with a gable
above this arch. There are two windows on each story on either side of this
central bay.

Besides the modernizations mentioned above, some window air condition-
ing units and partitions on the second story have been added. The roof has
been reshingled in a lighter color. A modern courthouse has been built
adjacent to the west, but otherwise the building is very similar to its
original appearance.
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Begun in 1889, the courthouse was completed in 1890, two years after
county organization. The architect was W. T. Heaps, who designed at least
one other western Kansas courthouse, Hamilton county, and who was the
contractor for the Rush county courthouse. Allen and Oleson of Ness City
were the general contractors, and William Ruff of Ness City had the sub-
contract for the carpenter work.

The county commissioners accepted the architect's plans on Octoberfll,
1889, and bids for the stone and the construction work were taken October 28.
Work went on through the winter and spring and by mid-summer the walls
were up. The galvanized iron cornice arrived and was installed in July.
Oleson had completed his work by September 25, 1890, and in early October
Ruff returned to Tribune to finish the work on the interior. The offices
of the county clerk and the treasurer moved in November 5, 1889, and the
others were in by the following week. The total construction cost was
$20,000.

Greeley county had been organized in 1888 on the basis of census
returns from mid-1887 which had shown 2,638 inhabitants. 1887 was a
boom year for many of the western Kansas counties; many new settlers were
taking up homesteads, and the population figures jumped. But by the time
the courthouse was finished the boom had collapsed. Economic reverses and
repeated crop failures had caused many settlers to lese their confidence
and abandon the land they had so eagerly settled a few years earlier.
Greeley county's population had dropped to 1400 by 1890. (The present figure
for the county is 2,210, the smallest of any of the state's 105 counties.)

In the summer of 1973 plans were prepared for a new courthouse build-
ing. Originally the county commission had proposed to build the new
structure downtown adjacent to the business district, but the voters insisted
the building be located on the present courthouse block, calling for the
demolition of the old courthouse. After a strong preservation campaign by
the Greeley county historical society, the commission decided to build the
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new courthouse next to the old and convert the old building into the
Greeley County Historical Society Museum.

The old Greeley county courthouse is one of the most distinctive
courthouse buildings still standing in western Kansas. It was the first
and until 1975 the only courthouse the county had built.
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